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Financal Statements

Jor the year ended 31 December 2017

Transmittal Statement

I am pleased to submit the Financial Statements of the COMESA Secretariat for the year ended 31 December
2017 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, statements of income and
expenditure, changes in accumulated funds and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements, which have been prepared 1n compliance with the requirements of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), Treaty and the financial rules and regulations of the COMESA Secretariat,

The Financial Statements have been audited by the Grant Thornton Zambia. Their opinion 1s included in the
Financial Report. A report to Management is separately issued.

Wowwt
Chileshe Mpundu Kapwepwe
SECRETARY GENERAL
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Finantal Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2017

Secrctary General’s report

Introduction

1

5]

I have the pleasure of submitting this report to the Council of Ministers for the financial year 2017,
together with the audited financial statements of COMESA Sccretariat for the year ended 31
December 2017. This submission is in accordance with Article 169 (4) of the COMESA Treaty.

These financial statements incorporate resources provided by Member States; Cooperating Partners
and other income in accordance with Article 166 (3) and Article 168 (3}, of the COMESA Treaty.

The report of the external auditors and their opinion on the financial statements are submitted in
accordance with Article 169 (4) under the Treaty. The external auditors arc appointed by the Council
of Ministers in accordance with provision under Article 169(2) of the COMESA Treaty.

Strategic context

4

0O

The financial statements provide a complete overview of the finances of the Seccretariat for the
financial 2017 — this includes information on the financial position of the Sccretariat, how the budget
has been implemented, as well as the financial commitments and obligations that the Sccretariat has
undertaken.

In order to reflect the multiannual nature of the Sccretariat's activities, the accounts include
explanations of the key financial figures and their evolution. The financial year 2017 was
characterized by major achievements and some challenges for the Common Market. The Secretariat
budget focused on strengthening the COMESA cconomy, boosting jobs and growth. The labour
market conditions, particularly for the youth remain challenging. Job creation and growth of intra-
COMESA trade has been less than optimal.

As the continental FTA kicks-off, it will certainly benefit from the lessons of COMESA IFTA, as well
as the Tripartite IFTA.

Resulis of Secretariat’s financial operations for the financial year 2017 are reflected in these audited
financial statements. The COMESA Treaty and 2016-2020 Medium Term Swategic Plan sets out the
strategic context, in particular the following;

(1} Activities of Secretariat are intended to contribute towards Member States” pursuit of a more
balanced and harmonious development of production and marketing structures; raising
standard of living of people; fostering closer relations among Member States; creating of an
enabling environment for trade and investment; promoting peace and sccurity and stabilicy;
towards the attainment of sustainable growth and development; and strengthening of
relations between the Common Market and the rest of the world.

(1) Work programmes are aimed at consolidating the COMESA Free Trade Area, as well as
laying the ground work for deeper regional and continental integration
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Sccretary General’s report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2017

8 The impact from the implementation of the 2017 annual plan and budget by the Secretariat should
thus be scen from positive trends on the following; -
{1) Strengthening Market Integration;
(if) Attracting Increased Investments;
() Surengthening the Blue / Ocean Economy;
(1v) Flarnessing the Benefits of Strategic Partnerships;
(v) Strengthening Development of Economic Infrastructure (Energy, Transport and ICTs);
(vi) Laying a framework for Industrialization;
(viipy  Fostering Gender Equality & Social Development;
(vitiy  Ensuring Regional and Sccretariat Readiness; and
(ix) Strengthening Regional Knowledge and Skills Capacity.
9 COMESA Member States and its Cooperating Partners have from 2005 availed substantal financial
resources towards implementation of the COMESA programme, as indicated in Table 1 below:
Table 1: Funds reccived through the COMESA Sccretariat towards implementation of
COMESA programmes in the period 2005 to 2017 (in COMS)
Year 2005-2009 2010-2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Cooperating Partners 65,027,083 166,689,663 27.442,698 25,184,588 19,093,591 303.437.623
Member States 35.790.887 60,441,517 14,344,207 10,816,301 13.690,729 135,083,641
TOTAL 100,817,970 227,131,180 41,786,905 36,000,889 32,784,320 438,521,265

Source:

10

il

13

Report of Council on Funding of COMESA programmes, November 2017

Included in the US$303 million availed by Cooperating Partners is US$140 mullion which has been
disbursed to Member States of COMESA towards the implementation of programmes. This is in
accordance with the implementation framework of COMESA programmes, as stipulated 1n the

Medium Term Sirategic Plan.

COMESA is in the process of ptogramming additional funds allocated by the European Union (€85
million under 11 RIP/EDF o COMESA programmes) and the United States Agency for
International Development (USAID) (US$$77,628,100 under Regional Development Objectives
Grant Agreement (RDOAG) towards the implementation of COMIESA programmes. These funds
will be implemented over the next 3 — 5 years.

Sccretariat’s institutional systems and processes are consistently rated as being in line with global best
practice and international standards, where required. This provides a positive assurance to Member
States and Cooperating Partners about accountability of funds. Led by the European Union and
United States Agency for International Development, a number of Cooperating Partners have
accepted use of Secretariat’s rules and procedures.

Sccretariat is increasingly allowed to sub delegate funds from Cooperating Partners to Member States

and other partners to support the implementation  of  COMESA  programmes.
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Secretary General’s report (continued)
Jor the year ended 31 December 2017

The organisation continues to keep its pace with the major siakes of the world ceonomIc
development, including the international consensus around industrializaton as the backbone of
responsible socio-economic development, including the provision of necessary added value to the
abundant natural resources available in the Common Market and addressing key cconomic
development enablers.

Oversight over operations of the COMESA Secretariat

In keeping with the principles of good corporate governance, the Council of Ministers provides
oversight over the operations of the COMESA Sccretariat by giving direction to the COMESA
Sccretariat through, among other activities:

(1) Approval of COMESA Secretariat’s annual budget and annual financial statements;

(1) Enacting of Staff Rules and Regulatons and Financial Regulations of the COMESA
Secretariat; Review technical reports on the implementation of policy, rules and regulations
by the COMESA Secretariat; and

{u1) Appointing of external auditors and receiving reports of the external auditors.

In between meetings of the Council of Ministers, the Bureau of Counci! attends to oversight matrers,
within the framework of the Treaty and as provided within other specific palicies, rules and
regulations. Bureau of the Council comprising of Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Rapporteur oversce
the functioning of the Secretariat in between meetings of the Council of Ministers. These are rotate
among the members of the Council for a term of one year. For 2017, the following Member States
constituted the Bureaw:

(1) Muadagascar: Chairperson
(u) Burundi: Vice Chairperson
{111} Ethiopia: Rapporteur

Administrative and Budgetary Committee and its subcommittee and Intergovernmental Committee
undertakes technical work and provides relevant advisory o the Council of Ministers. Auditors
General from COMESA Member States were designated as External Auditors of COMIESA

Secretariat,

2017 Performance overview

15
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Operations

The Secretariat operations in 2017 focused on programmes and acuvities which consolidated the
COMESA Free Trade Area. These, include support to and consultations with Member States, who
arc preparing to join the COMESA FTA. The Secretariat is acuvely working towards addressing
constraints, which reduce benefits of the FTA. Instruments being improved and or developed,
include the following;: -

() Those dealing with Rules of Origin;

(b) Development of electronic Certificate of Origin;
(¢ Trade and transport facilitation instruments;

(d) Border and customs instruments

{c) Eliminadon of Non-Tariff Barriers;

{f) Regional Customs Transit Bond;



N

= =3

— e
L. :

r—— —

COMESA - Secretariat

Seeretary General’s report {continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 December 2017

® Work towards roll-out of trade in services programmc;
) Payment and monetary programme; and
(i) Free movement of persons.
19 In the same period, work towards operationalization of Topartute FTA has continued and

negotiations towards Contnental Free Trade Area are at an advanced stage.

20 Secretariat has continued to carry out work in the context of preparations of its Customs Union. A
number of significant Customs Union instruments have been developed. Some of these are being
implemented.

2l Sccretariat’s operations in 2017 extended to addressing infrastructure challenges, which reduces the
benefits of COMESA FT'A. Activities wete carried out relating to: -

() Identification of priority bankable infrastructure projects;
(b) Power interconnectivity;
(<) Post-conflict reconstruction; and
{d) Transport, energy and communications.
22 In 2017, the Secretariat also carried out activities aimed at promoting COMESA as an investment

region. These, included: -

(@) Facilitating investment promotion acuvities; and
{b) Exploting COMESA - China investment linkages.

23 Recognising potential impact of value addition and market linkages, the Secretariat contributed to the
development of SME clusters’ model, including expanding local sourcing and development of a
regiona! framework on mineral bencficiation.

(a) Facilitating investment promotion activities; and
{b) Exploring COMESA — China investment linkages.

24 Being a COMIESA Policy Organs mandated to institutionalize decisions of COMESA Policy Organs,
the Secretariat continued to facilitate activities of other COMESA Institutions, Enuties, Sector and
Regulatory Associations towards the objectives of the Common Market.

(A
wn

Effective implementation of COMESA programmes is underpinned by: -

{a) governance, peace and security cooperation that is shared among the Member States of
COMESA. In 2017, activities focused on conflict prevention; consolidation of democracy;
and regional maritime security, among others;

(b) a continued commitment to climate change mitigation and adaption programmes, covering
not only climate change policy and strategy development and strengthening, but also project
development and implementation, technical capacity building and ensuring adequate access
to climate finance for its Member States. COMESA also provides a platform to share
experiences, best practices and opportunities among Member States, which forms part of the
south-south cooperation.
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Secretary General’s report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2017

{c) The initiatives increase the resilience of the COMESA region to climate change and achieve
the UN’s sustainable development goals in particular Goal 13 “Take urgent action to combat
climate change and its impacts” in order to reduce poverty and promote sustainable
development. The programmes also indirectly contribute to the conscrvation of biodiversity
by applying ccosystem-based solutions to climate change adaption and disaster risk
reduction.

(d) sustenance of robust and effective controls across management systems and processes,
across all operations and support services to enable the Secretary General and the Sccretartat
fulfill the mandate, as provided for under the Treaty.

Financial results
The Seeretariat recorded income for the year of COMS1,831,945 in 2017 (2016: COMS497,942) as at

December 2017,

In the year 2017, the Sccretariat recognised total income of COMS14,314,982 which is a increase of
1% from the income of COM$14,180,493 recognised in 2016.

Analysis of the income recognised in the year is presented in T able 2 below:

Table 2: Funds received through the COMESA Sccretariat towards implementation of
COMESA programmes in the period 1 January to 31 December 2017 (in
COMS)

Income frem 2017 2016] Change %

Member States contributions 13,873,608 13,617,509 2%

Other income 441,374 562,984 -22%

Total income 14,314,982 14,180,493 1%

A total expendirure COMS$13,502,963 is reported in 2017 against an amount of COMS$13,152,195 in
2016, i.c. an increase of 2.6%. Against the budget for the year, the Secretariat achieved a udlisaton
rate of 97% (Budger: COMS13,841,996; Actual: COMS13,490,558) on funds provided by Member
States.

Assets under the control of Secretariat have increased from COMS58,479,344 1n 2016 1o
COMS$69,795,677 in 2017, ic. 19%. Included in these funds are outstanding amounts duc on
assessed annual contribution of COMS17,992,908 (2016: COMS15,792,018).
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Secretary General’s report (contnued
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for the year ended 31 December 2017

Looking beyond 2017

31

33

COMESA will continue to implement the 2016-2020 Medium Term Strategic Plan. Adjustments,
taking account achievements made to date, as well as emerging regional, continental and global 1ssucs
will be proposed to COMESA Policy Organs in 2018-2019.

[ have been welcomed by the Common Market, as Secretary General, taking over from Mr. Sindiso
Ngwenya whose ten (10) year tenure came to 2 successful conclusion in July 2018. T will build on his
achicvements, as well as implement adjustments that are required by the Common Market, its
Member States, Organs, Institutions and Entities.

As [ conclude, 1 wish to thank their Excellencies, I'eads of State and Government for the confidence
shown in appointing me to the position of Secretary General of the Common Market. T will greatly
benefit from their Execllencies leadership and wise counset and that of all COMESA Policy Organs.

Chileshe Mpundu Kapwepwe
Secretary General
Lusaka, Zambia
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Financial Statensents

for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statement of responsibility in respect of preparation of financial statements

Pursuant to requirements of the COMESA Treaty, the Secretary General is responsible for oversceing the
preparation, fair presentation and overall integrity of the COMESA Sccretariat financial statements, comprising
the statemnent of financial position as at 31 December 2017, statements of income and expenditure, changes in
accumulated funds and cash flows for the year then cnded, and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the COMESA Treaty and financial rules
and regulations.

‘Fhe Secretary General is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over external
financial reporting in conformity with the basis of accounting. The system of internal control contams
monitoring mechanisms and actions that are taken to correct deficiencies identified. Internal control for external
financial reporting are subject to ongoing scrutiny and testing by Secretary General and internal audit and are
revised as considered necessary. The Sccretary General believes that such controls support the integrity and
reliability of the fAinancial statements.

‘I'here are inherent limitations to the effectivencss of any system of internal control, including the possibility of
human crror and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, an cffcetive internal control system
can provide only reasonable, as opposed to absolute, assurance with respect to financial statements’ preparation
and presentation. Furthermore, the effectiveness of an internal control system can change over time

The COMESA Council of Ministers has established an Audit and Budgetary Matters Sub Commuttee to
facilitate the execution of the mandate of COMESA oversight structures, in their responsibility for the
soundness of the Sccrctariat’s accounting policies and practices and the effectivencss of internal control. The
reports from external auditors and the internal auditors are deliberated upon by the Audit and Budgetary
Matters Sub Committee to assess the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and any other marter
that may requite its attention.

T'he Secretariat’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal controls is based on adherence to the provisions
under the COMESA Treaty, COMESA financial rules and regulations and other requirements, all of which
estabhish an Integrated Internal Control Framework for the Secretariat. Based on the results of this assessment,
the Sceretary General asserts that the Secretanat has mamntained effeetive internal controls over its financial
reporting as contained in the financial statements as of 31 December 2017, The Secretary General is not aware
of any material control weakness that could affect the reliability of the 2017 financial statements.

The Sceretary General has made an assessment of the Sccretariat's ability to continue as a going concern and has
no reason to believe that the Secretariat will not be a going concern in the year ahead, as explained in note 2
(basis of preparation) of the financial statements.

Grant Thornton is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements arc fairly presented in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, as described above.



Approval of the financial statements
The 2017 financial statements of COMESA Secretanat, as idenufied in the first paragraph, were approved by the
Secretary General on 31 October 2019 and signed by:

ent Kanyama

RECTOR (BUDGET AND FINANCE)

N

Dr Dev | I;‘l:m
ASSISTANT SECRETARY GENERAL (ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE)

10
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o GrantThornton

Grant Thornton

5th Floor Mukuba

Independent COMESA Auditor's report I LT

P.O. Box 308856
To the members of Common Market for Eastern and Southern Africa(COMESA)  Lusake, Zambia

Sccretariat T +260 (211) 227722-8

E gthusaka.mailbox@m.gt.com

Report on the Audit of the Financial Staternents

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Common Market for the Eastern and Southern Afrnica Secretamat
which comprise the statement of financial positon as at 31 December 2017, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in accumulated funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opimon, the financial statements give a true and far view of the financial posinon of the COMESA
Secretariat Member funds  as at 31 December 2017, and of ns financial performance and s cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Internanonal Financial Reporung Standards (11°RSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with Intemnational Standards on Audinng (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further desenbed in the Audior’s Responsibilines for the Audnt of the Financial Statements
secton of our report. We are independent of the COMESA Secretanat in accordance with the Internavonal Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethues for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together wath the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audir of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibibites in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We bebeve that the audir evidence we
have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilitics of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Secretary Generalis responstble for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Internanonal Financial Reportng Standards and the requirements of the COMESA Treary and
financial rules and regulanons and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal musstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, Secretary General is responsible for assessing COMESA’s abaluy to conunue
as 1 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relared 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management cither intends to hquidate the COMESA or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternanve but to do so.

These charged wath governance are responsible for overseeng the COMESA Secretariat’s financial reporung process.

Partners

Edgar Hamuwele [Managing)
Christopher Mulengo

Wesley Beene

Rodia Musonda

Chilala Banda Audit e Tax e Advisory

Dedan Kimathi Read

Chartered Accountants

Zombian Membar of Gront Therrten International

VAT rog 1001494100. Registered in Lusaka, Company number 814

Gront Thorntan Zambia and sther mamber firms are not a worldwide partnership. GT and sach member firm ia seporote legal entity.
Services ars delivered ind dently by the ber firms. GTl and its member firma cre not ogents, ond do nst obligate, one ancther

and ore not liable for ane ornotherl octs or amissions. 1 www.gt.com.zm
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial sttements as a whole are free from
marerial misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to ssue an auditor’s repoer that ineludes our opinion
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is nota guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 18As wall
always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists,  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of
users faken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and mantain professional skepticism
throughout the audir,. We also:

e Idenufy and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those nsks, and obtain sudit evidence that 1s sufficient and
approprate to provide a basis for our opmion. The nsk of nat detecung a maternl misstatement resulting from
fraud 15 hagher than for one resuliing from error, as fraud may mvelve callusion, forgery, mtenuonal omussions,
misrepresentatons, or the overnde of internal control

a  Obmin an understanding of internal control relevant o the audic in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
COMESA Secretanat’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountng estmates and
related diselosures made by management.

e Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basts of accounung and, based on the
audit evidence obtaned, whether 2 materal uncertainty exists related to events or condions that may cast
significant doubt on the COMESA Secrerariat’s abiliry to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
matenial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 1 our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
the financial statements, or, 1f such disclosures are nadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor’s report.  However, furure events or
conditions may cause the COMESA Secretariat to cease to conunue as a going concern,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including sigmificant deficiencies in inteenal control that we idenufy during our
audir.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opnion, the financial statements of The Commeon Market for the Eastern and Southern Afnica Secretariat as ar 31

December 2017 have been properly prepared in accordance with the  COMESA Treaty and financial rules and
regulations and the accnwfd other records and registers have been properly kept in accordance with the regulations

sk [t

hartered Accountants

4

M. Beene (AUD/F000465)
Name of Partner signing on behalf of the Firm

Lusaka

Date: 31 October 2019

[
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Fenancal Statements
ar at 31 Decentber 2017

Statements of financial position

In COMESA Dollar Note 2017 M6
Asscts

Non-current assets

Property and cquipment i) 26,393,545 18,118,301
Capital Work i Propress 5(b) 3,668,032 3,717,233
Investment in equity [ 2,354.953 2,098,963
Total: Non-current assets 32,416,530 23,934,500
Current assets

Member states contributions receivable 7(a) 17,992,908 15,792,020
Amounts due from Projects and other COMESA Enutes 8(a) 3,149,546 2,621,499
Amounts due from Other RECs 8 83,483 63,041
Contributions receivable for Econamic Partnership

Agreement 9 - 120,000
Other recetvables 10 806,871 735,405
Cash and cash equivalents H 15,346,339 15,210,280
Total: Current asscts 37,379,147 34,544,844
Total: Asscts 69,795,677 38479344
Accumulated funds and liabilities

Accumulated funds and rescrves

Reserve fund 12 10,100,607 11,844,736
Accumulated funds 13 46,527,754 30,335,426
Revaluation reserve 14 8,676,052 12,396,168
Total: Accumulated funds and reserves 65,304,413 54,576,330
Non-current liabilitics

Caputal grants 15 475,381 337.M3
Total: Non - current liabilities 475,381 537,913
Current liabilitics

Trade payables 16 283,925 333,622
Amounts due to COMESA enuities 17 2,037,859 2,918,469
Trust Creditors 18 919,442 -
Post-cmployment benefit 19 127,973 33,6406
Accruals and provisions 20 646,684 79,364
Total: Current liabilitics 4.016,333 3.365.102
Total: liabilities 4,491,264 3,903,013
Total: Accumulated funds and liabilities 69,795,677 58,479,344

These 2017 financial statements of COMESA Sceretanat

were approved by the Secretary General on 31 October 2019 and signed by:

en anyama

DI TOR (BUDGE'T AND FINANCE)

}_7%00\\_-

Dr. Dcv{l laman

ASSISTANT SECRETARY GENERAL (ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE)
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Statement of income and expenditure
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In COMES.A Dollar Naote 2m7 2016
Income
Member States contributions 7(a) 13,873,608 13,617,509
Other income 23 (a) 441,374 562,984
Total income 14,314,982 14,180,493
Expenditure by function
IExecutive management {1,564,553) 2,283,307)
Fluman resources and administration (4,010,432) {3,895,339)
Budpet and finance (923,479) {663,272)
Trade and customs (938,495) {806,950}
Infrastructure and logistics (656,045) (658,424)
Agriculture, environment and natural resources (713,020) (616,052)
Legal and institutional affaurs (610,414) {419,167)
Gender and social affairs (436,881) (512,289
Information technology (767,066) (715,831)
Internal audir (372,891} (311,928)
Strategic planning (233,409) (238,753)
Resource mobilisation and international Cooperation (209,936) {192,335)
Public rclations (344,962) {273,466}
Resource Centre (119,075) (114,983)
Estates Uit (201,845) {252,914)
Brussels liaison office (345,489) (362,753)
Depreciation on property and equipment {1,054,971) (832,205)
Total expenditurc: Member States funded 24 (13,502,963) {13,152,195)
Finance income 25 749,852 706,291
Finance costs 26 (496,805) (1,236,640)
Operating Surplus 1,065,066 497,042
Other Comprchensive Income 23 (b) 766,879
Total Comprchensive Income for the year 1,831,945 497,942
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COMESA - Secretariat
Financial Statements

Jfor the yeur ended 31 December 2017

Statements of changes in accumulated funds (continned)
Iu COMESA Dollar

Reserve fund

The reserve funds are derived from realized surplus of member states contributions over expenditure and other
income. These have accumulated over a period. The use of the reserve fund is governed by Financial Rules 45 and
46(\ and B) of the COMESA Financial Rules and Regulations. The reserve fund is represented by cash held by
banks. Detatls on reserves are provided in note 12.

Accumulated funds

Accumulated funds are the brought forward recognised income, net of expenses of the Secretariat, plus the current
period surplus. Year- end receivables on assessed annual contributions from Member States are part of accumulated
funds. Subsequent receipts of prior year assessed annual contributions from Member States are transferred into the
reserve fund in line with requirements of the COMESA Financial Rules and Regulations.

**Capital grants represents the value of assets transferred to the Secretanat by the mulnlateral and bilateral
cooperation partners without charge to the Secretariat. Capital grants are deferred and credited to the income
statement over the useful life of the related assets.

The unamortised Capital Grant US$187,798 is credited to accumulated fund to reverse the balance on Capital Grant
account on the date of asset revaluation.

Revaluation reserve

" As stated in note xxx, the Secretariat undertakes a revaluation of wts property and equipment cvery five (3) years.
Prior 1o 2017, the surplus recognised at revaluation was amortised over five (5), withour taking account the
rematning useful life of the relevant its property and equipment. The eredit into accumulated funds reverses the
increased deprecmtion that had been charged in 2012 to 2016 financil years on the revaluation surplus.
115512,396,168 1s accordingly being reversed.

Effective 2017, the surplus recognised n revaluation reserve 1s amortsed over cither five (5) years and or less,
whichever is lower based on remmning useful life of the relevant property and equipment.

Any unamortised surplus is reversed at the next revaluation cycle through accumulated fund.. The revaluation
surplus recognised in 2017 of US58,932,799 shall be amorused over either five (5) years and or less, whichever is

lawer.

16
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COMIESA — Secretarniat

Finaunctal Staterments
Jor the year ended 31 Decernber 2017

Statement of cash flows

I COMESA Dallar

Notes 2017 2016
Opcrating surplus for the year 1,831,945 497,943
Adjustments for (Income/Expenditure- Non: cash)
Depreciation 5(a) 1,054,971 832,205
Gaun on disposal of property and equipment 23(a) (14,491) -
Finance income 25 (493,804) (434,845)
Dividend income 23(a) (33,232) (30,991)
Amorgsation 23(a) (27,955) (35,907)
Gain on Investment in equity 23(h) (255,988) (361,394
2,061,388 467,011
Changes in (working capital)
Amounts due / to from other COMESA Projects and (528,048) 496,168
Enttics 8(a)
Decrease/ (Increase) in receivables 8(b)-10 27,582 (178,337)
Increase/ (Decrease) in payables 16-20 588,250 660,338
87,784 978,169
Interest received 25 218,795 419,579
Net cash generated from/ utilised in operating activiues 2,367,968 1,864,760
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase/(decrease) of property and equipment 5{a) (337,0606) (298,360)
Dividend reecived 23(a) 33,232 30,991
Net cashflows in investing activitics (303,834) {267,369)
Cash flows from financing activities
(Increase) /decrease in Member States contributions (2,200,889) (3,049,443)
receivables et}
Reserve fund movement in the year 12 172,979 -
Net cash flows from financing activitics (2,027,910) (3,049,443)
Effect of exchange rate adjustments 23 100,415 15,264
Cash and cash cquivalents 136,639 (1,436,787)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15,209,701 16,646,488

Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the year 15,346,339 15,209,701
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Notes to the financial statements

Reporting entity

The COMESA - Sceretariat (‘the Secretariat’) was formed i 1992 at the Tenth Authonty meeting of the
Preferential Trade Area of Eastern and Southern Afriea (PTA) when a decision was made to transform the
PTA into COMESA. The organisation currently has a membership of nincteen (19) states, namely Burunds;
Comoros; Democratic Republic of Congo; Djibouts; Egypt; Eritrea; Ethiopia; Kenya; Libya, Madagascar;
Malawi; Mauritius; Rwanda; Seychelles; Sudan; Swaziland;, Uganda; Zambia; and Zimbabwe. In July 2018,
the COMESA Authority at its meeting held in Lusaka Zambia admitted Somalia and Tunisia as Member
States of COMESA.

The Secretariat is domiciled in Zambia. Its registered office 1s COMESA Centre, Ben Bella Road, P. O. Box
30051, Lusaka.

Operations of COMESA arc carried out by its Organs and Institutions.

COMESA Secretariat is established under Article 7 of the Treaty, as an Organ of the Common Market, It is
headed by the Secretary General, assisted by Assistant Secretary Generals and staff, as established by the
Council of Ministers. The Secretary General responsibilities include, the following: -

(1) Servicing and assisting the organs of the Common Market in the performance of their functions;

(i1) Submitting reports in consultation with the Intergovernmental Committee on the activities of the
Common Market to the Council and the Authonity,

{ur) Responsibility for the admiistration and finances of the Common Market;

() Submitting the budget of the Common Market;

v Acting as the secretary to the Authority and the Councd;

(vi) ensuring that objectives set out in the COMESA Treaty are attained and shall, cither on her own

initiative or on the basis of a complaint, investigating a presumed breach of the provisions of this
Treary and reporting to the Council in accordance with an investigative procedure to be determined
by the Council;

fvir) keeping the functioning of the Common Market under conunuous examination and may act in
relation to any matter which appears to merit examination cither on his own initiative or upon the
request of a Member State where appropriate and report the results of his examination to the
Member State or the organ of the Common Market concerned;

{vit)  subject to the provisions of the COMESA Treaty submitting references to the Court concerning
the alleged breach of any obligation under this Treaty in relavon to the Common Market or as 10
any action or mission affecung the Common Market;

(1x) promoting the adoption of joint posttions by the Member States i mululateral negouations with
third countries or mnternavonal organisations,

(x) on her own initiative or as may be assigned to her by the Authority or the Council, undertake such
work and studics and perform such services as relate 1o the ams of the Common Market and to the
inplementation of the provisions of this Treaty; and

18
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13

Reporting entity (Continucd)

(x1) for the performance of the funcuons conferred upon him by this Article, collect mformation
and verify matters of fact relanng to the funcuoning of the Common Marker and for dhat
purpose may request a Member State to provide information relating thereto.

Operations of the Sccretariat are funded in accordance with the provision under Article 166 (3} of the
Treaty. Its budget is funded by Member States through annual assessed contribution and such other
resources as may be determined by the Council. In accordance a provision under Article 168 {3) of the
T'reaty, other resources of the Sceretariat, include grants, donations, funds for projects and programmes
and technical assistance and income earned from activities undertaken by the Common Market.

Pursuant to provisions under Article 169 of the COMESA Treaty, the Sccretary General prepares the
annual financial statements of the operations of SADC Institutions, which are then audited. Counell
appoints the external auditors in line with the Treaty.

Basis of preparation

21 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
‘The financial statements of the COMESA Secretarat herein referred to as the Secretarat have
been prepared in accordance with and comply with Internauonal Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of COMESA Treaty; COMESA Finanenl Rules and Regulations, The
financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. The
statement of eash flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Details of the Secretariat’s accounting polictes are included in note 38,

2.2 Going concern
As a result of the funding activities undertaken and the increased focus on working capital, the
Secretariat continues to maintain a good short-term and medium-term liquidity position. The
Sccretariat's forecasts and projections do take into account reasonablencess and possible changes
in operations and demonstrate that the Secretariat should be able to operate within the level of

its current financing,

The Secretary General as the Chief Accounung Officer of the Secretariat reasonably confirms
that the Secrctariat has adequate resources to continue i operational cxistence for the
foreseeable future. ‘The Secretariat therefore continues to apply the going concern basis in
prepanng its annual financial statements.

Forcign currency translations

The financial statements are presented in COMESA Dollar {COM §), as required by the COMESA
financial rules and regulations. The functional currency of the Secretariat is USD (1 USD = 1 COMESA
Dollar). Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information presented has been roundced off to the

nearest Dollar.

19
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COMESA — Secretariat
Financial Statements

Jor the year ended 31 Decensber 2017

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Seccretariat accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from thesc estmates.

Estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospecuvely.

Informauon about assumption and estimation uncertainues that have a significant risk of resulung in a
material adjustment i the year ended 31 December 2017 15 included in note 27.
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COMIZSA — Secretariat
Frnancial Staterents
Jor the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements fontinsed)

As recoverable amount of each asset 1s higher than its carrying value, based on cost less depreciavion and or
valuation, no impairment loss has been recognized.

In line with 1ts accounting policy, the Council in November 2017 approved the Secretariat’s valuauon of property,
plant and equipment. The opening balances at 01 January 2017 have accordingly been restated at valuation.
Depreciation in the years 1s charged based on this valuation amount over the esumated remaining lifc of the asset.

5 ()

Capital work in Progress

Capital work in Progress relates to expenditure towards the construction of new COMESA FHeadquarters.
The expenditure was incurred in 2015 upon completion and submission of detailed structural and
engineering, which were subscquently approved by the COMESA Couneil of Ministers in June 2015

At its ast meeting held in Lusaka, Zambia in July 2018, the COMESA Authority reaffirmed its commitment
to complete the construction of new COMESA Headquarters. Full cost and method of financing the
construction of new COMESA Headquarters will be examined and approved in due course. The Authority
expressed gratitude to the Republic of Zambia for providing the Sovercign Guarantee for the construcuon
of the New COMESA Headquarters and mandated the Councll to take appropriate decisions in relation to
thts project

Given the commutment made by the COMESA Authority towards the construction of new COMESA
Headquarters, which under Article 8 (2) 1s the supreme Policy Organ of the Common Market and 1s
responstble for the general policy and direction and control of COMES.A, the expenditure incurred in 2015
meets the conditions of capitalizaton under IAS 16, specifically that future economic benefits associated
with the specific costs towards structural and engineering design of new COMESA Headquarters will flow
to COMESA. The Sceretary General re-assesses continued comphance with the capitalization requirements
of IAS 16, on a yearly basis and at the tme of preparation of annual financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (onfinued)

I COMESA Dollur

6

Investment in equity

2017 2016
PTA Reinsurance Secretariat Limited 2,254,953 1,998,965
Afrnican Trade Insurance Agency *7 100,000 100,000
Total: Investments in cquity 2,354,953 2,098,965
PTA Reassurance
At fair value
Year [L\Iumbcr of Opening] Sharesl Dividend Share]  Fair value| Closing]
hare/share price balance] purchased| Capitalised] disposal adjustment| balance]
2017 PTA Rcinsurance
76453  ordinary 1,998,965 . - e 255,988]2,254,953
hares at US $5.99
2016 PTA Remnsurance
376453  ordinary 1,637,571 ] 3 ] 361,394{1,998,065
shares at $5.31

**The unquoted shares relate 1o ordinary shares held in African Trade Insurance Agency. As there 15 no
reliable measure of fair value of these investment, the fair value of ordinary shares held in African Trade
Insurance Agency was assessed to be equal to its cost.

Contributions

7 (@) Member states contributions receivable
See accounting policy note 35 i)

Contributions by Member States are remitted to the Seeretanat. Article 166 (6) requires that Fifty percent
of the contributions due from a Member State be paid into the budget of the Secretariat within one month
from the beginning of the financial year to which they relate and the remainder be paid within six months

from the beginning of that financial year.

Due to simificance of Member States’ contributions, the COMESA Authonty of Heads of State and
Government oversees their remitiance to the Secretariat. The Authority reviews progress regarding the
remittances on an annual basis and makes relevant directions, approving arrears repayment plans.

Member States yet to seule outstanding amounts continue to receive full benefits of COMESA
membership, unless they are under sanction as stpulated in Article 171 of the COMESA Treaty.

Based on the above, the Secretariat concludes that the amount receivable by the Sceretariar will be
remitted in full. These receivables would be considerced impatred if their carrying amounts (i.c. value i the
books of accounts) esceeds recoverable amounts (Le. what will eventually be received by COMESA
Secretaniat) in line with TAS 39,
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Notes to the financial statements (ontinued)

In COMIESA Dollar

7(a)

2017

Burundi

Comoros
DemaocrateRepublicOfCongn
Dyibout

Lyypr

Eritren

Ethiopia

Kenya

Labya

Madagascar

Malawt

AMaurttius

Rwanda

Seychelles

Sudan

Swaziland

Upganda

Zambia

Zimbabwe

Total

Less Budgers for Insumnons
2017 Secretariat Budget

Funds disbursed to COMESA

Institutions

Member states contributions (rontinued)
See accounting policy note 35 (i)

Opening  Contributions

balance at 1

January
2017

599,688
1,239,220
1,069,973
592,769
1,869,647
132,750

613,786
4,729,980

535,907
197,528

2,018,238
1,283,797

8,735
15,792,018

COMESA Compettion Commission (CCC)

Federatnon of Nagonal Associadon Women

n Business (FEMCOM)

Regional Investment Agency (RLA)

Total

assessment
for 2017

473,928
158,293
1,220,436
232,690
1,899,511
158,293
954,504
1,899,511
1,899,511
622,090
644,726
913,981
597,396
242,188
777,217
533,763
815,363
970,492
815,365
15,829,260
(1,955,652)
13,873,608

Budget

910,198
504,036

541,418

1,955,652

Payments
made in
2017

{264,085)
(60,261)
(1,719,588)
0
(1,865,465)
(316,808)
(954,504)
(2,406,622
(1,797,129)
(897,945)
(334,450)
(913,981)

(242,188)
(1,446,653)

(970,492)

(14,190,171)

Amount
Disbursed

(681,945)
(442,893)

(500,550)

(1,625,388)

1% interest
on late
contributions

8,942
14,391
9,758
7,114
19,182

1,070
55,578
2,612
5,090
5,974
28,642
5,338
26,037

8,241
197,969

Balance

228,253

61,143
40,868

330,264

Impairment

26,558
(15,371)
90,692
(101,030
(2,566)
25,765

283
(28,299)
840
1,230

602,809
(1,264)
(230,672)

(5,145)
363,831

Closing
balance at 31
December
2017

845,031

1,336,272
671,272
731,543

1,920,308

108,028
4,859,641
263,504
514,124

603,370
2,880,253
537,837

1,894,528

#27,196
17,992,908

The Secretariat budget incorporates budgerary allocation of other COMESA Insututions, namely, COMESA
Competition Commission, Federation of Natonal Association of Women in Bustness and COMESA Regional
Investment J\gency. These Insututions have a repornng framework outside that of the Sccretanat, accordingly, the
funds disbursed to the COMESA Institutions and related expenditure thercon are excluded from the Fmancial
Statements of the COMESA Secretariat,
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for the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements (continned)

In COMESA Dotlar

7 (a) Member states contributions fent/insred)
See accounting policy note 35 {1}
2016 Opening Contributions | Payments 1% interest | Impairment Closing
balance at 1 assessment made in on late balance at
January for 2016 2016 | contributions 31
2016 December
2016
Burundi 490,069 465,433 (300,000} 6,776 {62 590) 599,688
Comoros 1 090,954 155,455 - 13,278 (20 467) 1,239,220
Democratic
Republic of Congo - 1,198,561 11,986 (140 574) 1,069,973
Djibouti 431,875 228,519 - 7,358 {74 983) 592,769
Egypt - 1,865,465 - 18,655 {14 473) 1,869,647
Eritrea 148,338 155,455 {149,088) 1,569 {23 524) 132,750
Ethiopia - 937,396 (937,396) - - -
Kenya 1,346,172 1,865,465 | (2,603,639} 6,080 292 613,786
Libya 3,210,866 1,865,465 - 54,014 (400 365) 4,729,980
Madagascar 1,453,531 610,940 | (1,532,772) 5317 (1 10% 535,907
Malaws 48,448 633,170 (-484,828) 1,968 (1230 197,528
Mauritius - 897,599 (897,599} - - -
Rwanda 572,171 586,689 | (1,159,664) - 804 -
Seychelles - 237,847 (237,847) - - -
Sudan 3,005,507 763,286 (763,286) 34,987 {122 256) 2,918,238
Swaziland - 524,196 {524,196) - - -
Uganda B75,793 800,751 (86,119) 17,707 {324 335) 1,283,797
Zambia 68,851 953,097 | (1,021,978} - 30 -
Zimbabwe - 800,751 (792,092} 86 10 8,735
12,742,575 15,545,540 | (11,490,504) 179,781 (1,185,374) 15,792,018
Less budgets for Insumutons (1,928,031)
2017 Secretariat Budget 13,617,508
Funds disbursed 1o COMESA Amount
Institutions Budgct Disbursed  Balance
COMESA Compennon Commission
(CCO) 920,032 (806,552) 113,480
Federation of Nanonal Assocmton
Women in Business (FEMCOM]) 490,609 (349,330) 141,279
Regmomal Investment Apgency (RIA) 517,390 (500,703) 16,687
Total 1,928,031 1,656,585 271,446
25
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Sor the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements (rontinsued)

In COMESA Dofiar

8(a) Amounts due from other COMESA Entitics

See acconnting policy note 33 (vi)

COMESA Institutions

COMESA Competition Commission - Merger Fees
Yellow Card

ACTESA

COMIESA Court of justice

COAMIESA Monetary Institure

COMIES. Business Council

Brussels Limson Office

Sub Tatal

COMESA Grant Funded Programmes

Afriea Peace Seeurny Architecture

Regional Integranon Support Mechanism

USAID - Integrated Partnership Assistance Agreement
TCF Project

Tripartte Capacity Building Project

Regronal Integravon Support Programme (RISPI)
Africa Peace Facility CA 2

Regional Associaton of Energy Regulators for ESA
Short Term Projects

Chmate Change - DFID

COMIESA AfDB 30 Million Women Speak Platform Project
[RCC Support Programme

‘Capacity of COMESA 1o Support Econ. & Trade Policy
Staustcal Capacity Bullding 4.2

Hubs and Spokes

Stansucal Capacity Bullding - ICP

Mariume Security Programme

RPTHSSPS

T'rading For Peace AfDB

Great Lakes Trade Factlitavon Project
AU-IBAR/VET-GOV Project

Sub Tatal

Total

Provision for bad debts

Africa Peace Factliy CA 2

USAID - Integrated Partnership Assistance Agreement
Total after Provision

2017

305,885
232,452
124,000
5,182
2,492
150

670,162

1,044,043
732,298
233,609
171,764
140,890
139,001
124,277

45,000
32,155
24,885
5,334
4,937
2,568
500
126

1

-

-

2,701,397

3,371,559

(124,277)
(97,736)
3,149,546

2016

268,163
170,703
164,000

5,669
150
8,774
617,460

727,409

56,351
410,184
160,630
160,299
124,277

40,749

645
5,245
304,675
1,099
10,241
1,169
1,067
2,004,039

2,621,499

2,621,499
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COMESA Institutions: Amounts due to and or from COMESA Insututions and Entitics represent
arm’s length exchanges. Sccretarint has a responsibility of collecting assessed annual Member States
contributions due to COMESA organs and other COMESA Insututions receiving funding from
Member States, as well as processing and paying employee remuneration.

COMESA projects funded by Cooperating Partners’ grants: amounts duc to and or from other
projects implemented at the Secretariat. These prepare own financial statements and are separately
audited, with the aodited financial statements submitted to both COMESA Policy Organs, as well as
Cooperating Partners.

Provisions for bad debts

EU signed an Africa Peace Facility (APF) with the AU, which provided support to COMESA, EAC,
ECOWAS and  SADC which was cffective May, 2007 - April 2011, At the end of this facility,
COMFESA had recetved a total amount of US$1,969,760. The provision on APF represents the
allocation of amount attributed to differences between the EURQ/USD rate on the date funds were
disbursed by the EU and received by the AU and the EURQO/USD rate on the date when funds were
transferred from AU to partcipating Regional Economic Communities (RECs), being COMESA, EAC,
ECCAS, ECOWAS and SADC. The governing Contnbution Agreement does not provide for
reimbursement of such exchange rate movements. The e¢xchange rate loss was therefore prorated
among the participating RECs. COMESA’s share of this exchange loss 1s US$124,277, as certified by
independent audi

USAID signed an Integrated Partnership Assistance Agreement (IPAA) which was effective 31 August,
2009 - 30 September, 2018. Under this agreement, COMES.A received US$21.94 million. The provision
on IPAA represents unclumable VAT, as well as amounts spent prior to IPAA, previously considered
reimbursable, but to proposed for write-off as the relevant grant ended prior to IPAA. Total provision
and amount removed from debstors in respect of USAID grant is therefore US$97,736.

8(b) Amount due from other RECs

See acconnting policy note 35 (vi) 2017 2016

Fast African Commission 83,483 65,641
Total 83,483 65,641

COMES.A signed Regional Integration Support ( RISP1) with the EU which was effecuve 15th June
2005 - 30 June 2010. The project was implemented jointly berween COMESA and EAC but the
Contribution Agreement was signed between COMESA and EU. Under this agreement COMESA
received EU 31,438,749.00. The amount due from EAC represents incligible amount arising from
Unsupported contracts and non-compliant contracts activities carried by EAC as idenufied by EU
Court of auditors.

9 Contribution receivable for Economic Partnership Agreement

Jo COMIESA Daifar

2017 2016
Comoros 36,000 36,000
Entrea 36,000 36,000
Sudan 36,000 36,000
Ethiopia 12,000 12,000
Total 120,000 120,000
Provision for bad debts {120,000) v
Closing balance 0 120,000
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Notes to the financial statements (continned)

The balance relates to contribution by Member States towards the cost of the office of the Chief
Technical Advisor (CTA). The office of the Chief Technical Advisor was created in order to
facilitate negotiations between the COMESA region in the Economic Partnership Agreement
(EPA) and the European Union. The contribution allocated to the above Member States
represents costs aleeady ineurred by COMESA on thewr behalf. These Member States are yet to
reimburse COMESA as per the agreement. The allocation for contrnibution by each Member State
was COMS$12,000 per annum for a period of 3 years towards the budget as per agreement.

B O T EE o=

10 Other receivables
See accaunting policy note 28(f}

2017 2016
Staff Loans 186,196 174,377
Staff Advances 88,852 134,122
Imprest 3,662 11,118
Bank Interest Recervable 157,969 195,211
8 Dividends Recetvable 33,232 64,423
[| VAT Recervable 0 0
: Rentals Reecivable 82,474 72,470
Other recevables 62,500 35,618
L'nused Tickets 1,975 0
Other Member States recetvable 49,201 0
- Prepayments 144,500 48,048
[ | 810,562 735,986

[_, 11. Cash and cash equivalents

See uccounting policy note 28f)
2017 2016
[ ! 11.1 Term deposits

. COMSLEC Barclays Bank USD 5,000,000 8,000,000
COMESA SEC ECO bank USD A /C 1,194,674 1,145,878
6,194,674 9,145,878

The COMESA financial rules and regulations allow the Secretartat to place on Term deposit balances on its
reserve fund which will not be required in the short to medium term. Competitive rates are obtaned for these
wvestments. These balances are part of the reserve fund of the Secretanat.

11.2 Unrestricted balances - Member States Funds

Operational current acecount - SCBZ Receipting USD 1,153,908 455,418
Operational current account - SCBZ Operational USD 335,516 7
Operational current account - SCBZ COMESA Fund 1,720,490 1,720,490
USD
Operational current account - Citibank USD 1,551,425 592,394
P Operational current account - Euro 344,787 516,365
il L.ocal currency operational account - Operational 3,388 9,886
- Cash m transit : 673,286
Petiy cash 204 -
5,109,718 3,967,839
| )
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In COMESA Dallar

Funds which do not have contractual restrictions on their applicauons fall under chis category. These balanees are

part of the accumulated funds of the Secretariat.

11.3 Restricted balances

Reserve Fund - Member States 3,122,504 2,095,983
Trust Creduors - ARICEA Funds 019,442 -

4,041,947 2,095,983
Total: Cash and cash equivalents 15,346,339 15,209,700

Usc of these funds is restricied to the renms and conditions of the relevant instrument, namely, COMESA financial
rules and regulations for the Reserve Fund and Grant Agreements for the funds availed by Cooperating Partners,

12. Reserve fund

12.1 Movements on Reserve Fund
2017 2016
Opening balance 11,844,736 13,941,861
Receipts 6,611,042 4,461,725
Withdrawals (8,576,327) -
Interest 221,156 (6,558,850)
Closing balance 10,100,607 11,844,736

29
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12.2 Schedule of withdrawals and receipts in the year
Description Item Reserve | Reserve Fund Reserve Fund
Fund | Bank - ledger Liabiliry-
Bank account | ledger account
Statements Decbit Credit
End Result / End Result /
After Journals After Journals
Col 1 Col 2 Col 4 Col 5 Col 6
Opening balance Standard Chariered Bank: 31 Dece 2016 2,005,982.72
Barclays Bank: 31 Dec 2016 §,000,000.00
lico bank: 31 Dee 2016 1,145,878.28
Sudan: 31 Dee 2016 673,286.00
Toual 11,915,147.00 11,915,147.00 11,844,736.00
Reeetps (I'manenl Rules | Arrcars contnbunions from Members States [Annex 6,197,620.15 6,197,620.15 6,356,098.15
45) 1]
Jixeess contributtons of Member Stares n/a n/a 172,959
Interest earned -Eeo bank 48,795.32 18,795.32 48,795.32
[nterest eamed -Barelays Bank 172,361.11 172,361.11 172,361.11
Monctary donauons n/a n/a n/a
PProcecds from services rendered by the Scerctaran 81,9842 81,984.42 B1,984.42
and 118 Insttutions
Cash m Tranat [/ Re- {673,286.00) (673,286.00)
allocation
Withdrawals {1smancul Payment of recurrenr expenditure at the begiming of | (8,425,444.00) | (842544400 (8,425,444.00)
Rule 46A)(1) the year, pending recopt of contnbunons  from
member States. Upon recapt of commbution the
amownt shall be transfereed back o the reserve,
Unbudgeted  for but wrgent and  unforescen (122,000.00)
expenditure, wiich  cannot be deferred to the - -
followmyg financaal year wathour adversely affecting
the operanons of the COMESA subject to the
approval of the Bureau
Unbudgeted  for but  urpent  and  unforescen (28,883.00)
expendinure,  whieh  cannot be deferred 1o the
followmg fnancal year without adversely affectng
the operatons of the COMESA subject 1o the
approval of the Bureau
Incurrence of capial expenditure m respeet of wineh nia n/a n/a
covering pohicy has been previously approved by the
Council,
Payment of expenditure on approved supplementary n/a n/a nfa
budget; and
Investment subject to the approval of the Bureau. n/a n/a n/a
Clasing balances 9,317,178.00 9,317,178.00 10,100,607.00
Reserve Fund closing balance reconciled to
balance at the bank
Reserve [Fund closing fund balance 10,100,607 11,844,736
Less: Amounts not transferred 10 Reserved Fund
account at 31 December 2017 (783,429)
Add: Over transfer from Operanons A /c 70,411
Reserve Fund closing bank balance 9,317,178 11,915,147

3t
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Ie COMESA Dollar

13.

14.

15,

Accumulated funds

Opening balance
Transfer from revaluauon reserve

Transfer from capital grants
Withdrawal from reserve funds
Amortisation

Net cash transfer from reserve fund
Prior year adjustment

Surplus for the year

Closing balance

Revaluation funds

Opening balance

Valuation

Transfer to accumulated fund
Amortsabuon

Capital grant

Closing balance

Capital grants
See accounting policy note 35{vii)

Opening balance

Addiion

Transfer to accumulated fund
Amorusaton for the year

Closing balance

2017 2016
30,335,562 41,261,072
12,396,168 (13,941,861)

187,913
(6,832,218) 2,097,125
186,747 421,283
8,425,444
(3,691)
1,831,945 497,943
46,527,754 30,335,562
2017 2016
12,396,168 12,817,451
8,932,799
(12,396,168)
(186,747) (421,283)
(70,000)
8,676,052 12,396,168
2017 2016
537,913 573,820
186,850 0

(187,913) 0

(61,469) (35,907)
475,381 537913

Capital grants represents the value of assets transferred 1o the Secretarat by the mululateral and
bilateral cooperation partners without charge to the Secretariat. Capital grants are deferred and
credited to the income statement over the useful life of the related assets.

31
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In COMESA Dollar

16 Tradc Payables
See acconnting policy nate 33 (vif)

Aurlines
Operanonal Payables
Consultants and Interpreters

Total

17 Amount duc 1o COMESA Institutions and Entites
See acvonnting poliey uote 35(11)

COMIZSA Court of Justice

COMILSA Leather and Leather Products Institute
COMESA Virtual Trade Facilitation System
Brussels Liaison Office

COMESA Fund

Mantme Sceurity Programme

IRCC Support Programme

Trading For Peace Afdb

Capacity of COMIZSA to Support Econ. & Trade Policy
Climate Change - Norwegian

COMLESA Voluntary Funeral Scheme

COMESA Make A Difference

Closed Project

2017

(69,292)
(92,487)
(122,147)

(283,925)

2017

151,545
5,099
1,849,018
1,271
1,050
2,568
17,841
3,824
3,100
2,543
2,037,859

2016

(32,309)
(197,935)
99,550)

(329,795

2016

269,238
200,000
57,449
1,849,018
29,605
1,050
2,568
3,564
2,500
2,543
2.417,535

COMESA Secrerariat’s systems and processes are applicable to operatons that are fully reimbursed by

financial resources other than Member States contribuuons.

COMESA Scerctanar obtains inputs, namely goods and services from third parties based on uts internal
controls. Financal hability is then ulumately scttled based on the relevant source of funding. Accordingly,
stringent expenditure controls are in place aimed at matching each expenditure aganst an existing source of
funding as well as ensuring compliance with expenditure ehgibility requirements, including prior objection for

the spending where necessary,

The amounts due from related insticutons and enutes are thus fully recevable by the COMESA Seeretana,
as they relate to expenditure that 15 fully reimbursable. Management has concluded that no impairment has

occurred on these amounts.
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In COMESA Dollar

18 Trust Creditors
See acconnting policy note 33 (vit)

Duc to its mandate, COMESA Sccretariat holds funds in trust for entities under the process of
development. These funds are not part of operatons of the COMESA Sccretariat. At the of 31
December, 2017, the Scerctariat held Trust Creditors of USS 919,442 (31 December, 2016:

L3

==

1155907,522).

19 Post-cmployment benefit
See accomnting policy note 35 (vii)
2017 2016
Provident control account (6,141,307) (7,488,345)
Staff Pension Fund - Zurich 6,013,334 7,454,699
(127,973) (33,646)

33
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20 Accruals and provisions
See acconniing policy note 33 (ri)

Staff Payables
Creditor Clearing

Provisions

34

2017 2016
536,925 60,668
560 0
109,199 18,696
646,684 79,304
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23 (a) Other income
See accounting policy note 35 i)

2017 2016
Amortisanion of Capital Grant 27,955 35,907
Other Non Exchange Revenue? 231,789 32,278
Dividend Income 33,232 30,991
Rental Income 133,908 97,344
Disposal of assets - Profit or Loss 14,491 5,070
Increase in value of investments 361,394
441,374 562,984
*Onher income relares o the followmy
0y Reversal of unfulfilled poor vear commumunts
23 (b) Other Comprchensive Income
2017 2016
Unutilised budget for Institutions 330,264 -
Increase in value of investments 255,988 -
Prior year refund of unfulfilled contract 172,959 -
Prior ycar amortsation on disposed assets 7,668
766,879 -

I
]
I
i
I
I
{
U
i
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25

for the year ended 31 December 2017

for the year ended 31 December 2016

Finance income
See acconnting policy note 35(1)

Bank interest received

Interest on late contributions (note 7)
Interest on staff loans

Impairment gain

Exchange gain

Finance costs

Bank charges
Provision for bad debts
Impairment loss
Exchange movement

Finance costs

338

2017 2016
184,049 230,279
197,969 179,781

4,002 9,519
363,831 :

. 15,264
749,852 434,843
54,377 51,271

342,013

1,185,374
100,415
496,805 1,236,645
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27

271

Jor the year ended 31 Decernber 2016

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
Accounting classifications and fair values

A number of the Secretariat’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

e Valuation nodels

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markers that the Secretarat
can access at the measurement date are obtained direcdy from an exchange on which the instruments arc
iraded. For all other financial instruments, the Sccretariat determines fair values using other valuation

techniques.

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair valuc s less objective,
and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

‘The Secretariat measures fair values using the following fair value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inpurs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either direcdy {1.c. as
prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments but for which significant unobscrvable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments.

3
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27.

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management fontinned)
fi) Valnation models (continued)

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with
similar instruments for which observable market prices exist and other valuation models.
Assumpuons and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other premin used in esumating discount rates, equity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity indices, depreciation and ammortisation multiples and revenue multiples and
expected price voladlines and correlauons.

The objective of valuation techniques 1s to arrive ar a fair value measurement that reflects the price
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to wtansfer the hability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Organisation uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common
and simple financial instruments that use only observable market data and require little management
judgement and estumation. Observable prices and medel inputs are usually available in the market for
listed debt and equity sccurities. The availability of observable market prices and model nputs
reduces the need for management judgement and esimaton and reduces the uncertainty assoctated
with the determination of fair values. The availability of observable market prices and inputs varies
depending on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and general
conditons in the financial markets.

(i) Fuir value bierarcly — Finandial instriments measnred af fatr valne

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at far value at the reporung date by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categonsed. The amounts
are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position. All fair value measurements
below are recurring.

31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity investments 2,254,953 - - 2,254,953

31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equiry mvestments 2,098,905 2,008,965
40
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In COMESA Dollar

27. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (con/ined)
271 Accounting classifications and fair values (confinued)
The financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss are short-term financial
assets and financial Habilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-

term nature and, for the financial assets, high credit quality of counterpartics.

The fair values of the Sccretariat’s financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts
shown in the statement of financial position, are as follows:

v |

=

e

|

2Mm7 Note Total fair value Total carrying
amount
Financial assects
Member states Contnibution receivable 7 17,992,908 17,992 908
Amounts due from other COMESA 8¢a) 3,149,546 3,149,540
entitics
Amounts due from Other RECs 8¢h) 83,483 83,483
Other Recevables 10 806,871 806,871
Cash and Cash equivalents 11 15,346,339 15,346,339
Total 37,379,147 37,379,147
Financial Liabilitics
Trade payables 16 283,925 283,925
Amounts due to COMESA entities 17 2,037 859 2,037,859
Trust Creditors 18 919,442 919,442
Post-employment benefit 19 127,973 127,973
Accruals and provisions 20 646,684 646,684
Total 4,015,883 4,015,883
Net Financial asscts 33,363,204 33,363,264

41
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FJe Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continned)
271 Accounting classifications and fair values (ontinned)
2016 Note Total fair value

Financial assets

AMember states Contribution recervable
Amounts due from other COMESA

Enuties

Amounts due from other RECs
Contribunion recevable for EPAs
Other Recavables

Cash and Cash equivalents

Total

Financial Liabilitics

Trade payables

Amounts due to COMESA entines
Trust Credntors

Post-employment benefir

Accruals and provistons

Total

Net Financial assets

8¢a)
8(b)
9

10
1

16
17
18
19
20

Total carrying

amount

15,792,020 15,792,020
2,621,499 2,621,499
65,641 65,641
120,000 120,000
735,985 735,985
15,209,700 15,209,700
34,544,844 34,544,844
333,622 265,380
2,918,469 2,067,464
33,646 33,646
79,364 79,364
3,365,102 3,365,103
31,179,742 31,179,742
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Notes to the financial statements fontinned)

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continned)

27.2

Financial risk management

The Insttute has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

1) Credit nisk
(11) Liquidity t1sk
(111) Market nsk

(1v) Currency risk
(v) Interest rate risk’
(vi) Counter - party credit risk

The Secretary General has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Secretariat nsk
management framework.

The Secretariat risk’s management policies are established to identfy and analyse the risks faced by the
Secretariat, to sct appropriate tisk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Rask
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Secretariat actvities. The Secretanat, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Sccretary General oversees how management monitors compliance with the Secretarat risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the company. The Sceretary General undertakes both regular and ad hoce
reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Seerctariat if a customer or counterparty to a financial
mstrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Member State
contributions and other receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. These risks are managed
in the integrated framework of the COMESA Treaty, Financial Rules, Debtors Policy and Implementation
Procedures.

The Sccretariat exposure to credit risk is influcnced mainly by individual characteristics of each Member
State. The demographics of the Secretariat customer base, including the default risk of the country in
which Member States operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. However, geographically there is no
concentration of credit risk.

No collateral is required in respect of financial assets. COMESA has a policy in place and the exposure to
credit risks is monitored on an on-going basis through duly mandated COMESA Policy Organs, namely
the COMESA Authority and Council of Ministers.
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27. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
27.2  Financial risk management (conftnued)

Reputable financial institutions are used for cash handhng purposes. At reporting date, there was
no significant concentration of credie risks.

The Sccretariat establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of conwributon and other receivables in accordance with TAS 39.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum ¢
xposutc to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

Note 2017 2016

Member states Contribution receivable 7 17,992,908 15,792,020
Amounts due from other COMESA entdes 8fa) 3,149,546 2,621,499
Amounts due from other RECs 8th) 83,483 65,641
Contributons receivable — Economic partnership 9 - 120,000
Agreement
Other recevables 10 806,871 735,985
Cash and cash equivalents 1 15,346,336 15,209,700

37,379,147 34,344 844

Impairment losses
The movement in the allowance for impairment for the Secretariat in respect of the contributions receivable

during the year was as follows:

2017 2010
Balance at 1 January 2,365,788 1,180 414
Increase/(decrease) in allowance (363,831) 1,185,374
Balance at 31 December 2,001,957 2,365,788
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In COMESA Dalfar

27.

27.2

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (ionfinned)
Financial risk management(iontinizd)

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Secretariat will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Secretariat approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Insttute reputation,

The Secretanat ensures that 1t has sufficient ¢ash on demand to meet expected operational expenses,
including the servicing of financial obligatons; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Ulumate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the COMESA Council of Ministers,
which has butlt an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Sccretanat short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Secretartat manages liquicdity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilides by
contnuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The following are the contractual maturitics of financial labilities, including esumared interest payments:

Non-derivative financial liabilities

31 December 2017 Carrying Contractual 12 months
amount cash flows or less

Current Fmanctal Liabilines 4,015,883 4,015,883 4,015,883

Total 4,015,883 4,015,883 4,015,883

31 December 2016 Carrying Contmcrual 12 months
amount cash flows or less

Current Financial Liabilitics 3,365,102 3,365,102 3,365,102

Total 3,365,102 3,365,102 3,365,102
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I COMES A Dollar

27.

27.2

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {ion/nied)

Financial risk management (ronfinued)

(iii) Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
cquity prices will affect the Secretariat income or the value of 1ts holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while opurmising the return on risk

(iv) Currency risk

The Sccretariat is exposed to currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than
the funciional currency of the Secretartat. This risk arises due to transactions in a currency other than the
source of funding currency.

This nsk is mitigated by contracting liabiliues in the currency of source of funding.
In respect of other monerary assets and liabilides denominated in foreign currencics, the
Secretariat ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by transaction in foreign

currencies at spot rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.

The currency risk expressed in COM § at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

COMS EURO GBP ZMW
2017 Exposure Exposure Exposurc
Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,998,164 344,787 - 3,388 153,346,339
Net exposure 14,998,164 344,787 - 3,388 15,346,339
COMS EURO GBP ZMW
2016 g T Exposure Exposure Exposure Total
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 14,683,449 516,365 - 9,886 15,209,700
Net exposure 14,683,449 516,365 - 9,886 15,209,700

S 1]
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Notes to the financial statements fontinued)
In COMES.1 Dollar

27. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
27.2  Financial risk management (continued)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date
2017 2016 2017 2016
COM $ 9.28 10.1 10.11 9.9

A 10% strengthening/(weakening) of the USD, as indicated below against the ZMW at 31 December
would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
computation is based on the foreign exchange rate variance that the Sceretariat considered reasonably
possible at the reporting date. The computation assumes all the other variables remain constant.

Strengthening Weakening
Profit or Profit or
Equity loss Equity loss
31 December 2017
COMS (338) {338) 338 338
31 December 2016
COM $ (988) {(988) 988 088

v) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk thar the fair value of a financial instrument or the future cash flows wall
fluctuate duc to changes in market interest rates. The Secretanat is not exposed to interest rate risk
as none of its financial liabtites are  held on  a  variable  rate  basis.
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27.

27.2

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {rontinied)
Financial risk management {continied)

(vi) Counter party credit risk

In the normal course of business, the COMESA Secrctanat udlizes various financial instruments to
mect needs of actions under this control that are resourced by Cooperating Partners. COMESA
Secretariat also supports operations of other COMESA Organs and Sccretariat Institutions and
Enuties with arrangements with COMESA established under Article 182 of the Treaty.

COMLESA Organs and Insttutions facilitated in the reporting period are COMESA Court of
Jusuce; Compeuton Commussion; Federation of Nauonal Associatons of Women in Business in
Zastern and Southern Africa and Regional Investment Agency.

Entties with arrangements with COMESA established under Article 182 of the Treaty facilitated in
the reporung period are Yellow Card; COMESA Business Council; COMESA Virtual Trading
Facilitason System; and Alhiance for Commodity Trading in Eastern and Southern Africa.

The above counterpartics, being actions funded under Cooperating Partners; COMESA Organs
and Institutions; and Entues established under Article 182 of the Treaty, are all related to the
COMESA Secretariat and any transfer of resources to them is subject to internal approval
processcs.

Prior approvals from duly mandated structures are also obtained for transfer of resources to these
counterpartics. Accounts are settled on a continuous monthly basis.
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27.

273

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management ftontinned)

Operational risk management
The COMLESA Sccretariat is exposed o operational risks arising from its systems and processes.

Operational risks include the nisks of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and/or systems, and from external events which could have a negative financial or adverse
reputatonal impact. Operavonal risk is present in virtually all the COMESA Secretariat’s
transactions and includes losses attributable to fallures of internal processes in operations.

The Secretary General assisted by Assistant Secretary Generals has oversight on operadonal nsk
acuvitics across the COMESA Secretarat. This includes the implementation of an Integrated
Internal Control Framework covering, an Internal Control over Financial Reporting based on the
COMESA Secretanat Risk Management Framework established by the Council of Ministers.

The Risk Management Framework ensures a structured and well-coordinated approach to nsk
identification and assessment, risk mitgation and control as well as risk reporting across the
CODMIESA Scerctariat,

[t 15 the primary responsibility of the management of each division and unit to implement adequate
controls in their respectve business processes based on the prevailling institutional standards.
Management is required to sign attestation of compliance annually.

Compliance with instututional standards is verified through periodic reviews undertaken by the
Internal Audit Unit of the COMESA Secretariat. The results of internal audit reviews are discussed
with the Management of the relevant business unit{s), with summaries submitted to the collecuve
management team comprising of Secretary General, Assistant Sccrctary Generals and Heads of
Divisions and Units and a Technical Committee on Audit and Budgetary Matters, whose reports
are transmitted through other structures to the Council.

The COMESA Secretaniat is developing on a contingency and business continuity plan which aims
to ensure the contunuity of its operations and protect the interests of all its key stakcholders namely,
the Member States and other creditors as well as employees and their families, in the event of any
disturbance in its office locatons.

Other elements of the COMESA Secretariat’s operavonal risk management practices include
comphance with the Code of conduct and staff rules.
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28, Contingent liabilities
The Sccretariat had known material contingent hiabilities as at 31 December 2017: COMS (2016: Nil).

()  Case 1: Indigo Logistics and Procurement Limited vis-a-vis Common Market: The Seeretary
General was sued in his capacity as Secretary General for the Common Market in a casc involving
the Yellow Card Scheme. The Court ruled against COMESA and the Compensation award of
US$160,434 plus interest was scitled by Yellow Card. Yellow Card 1s necgotiating costs of
US$50,000 plus interest. No provision has been made in the Secretariat accounts as the primary

responstbility is with the Yellow Card.

(i)  Case 2: Malawi Mobile Limited vis-a-vis Comtmon Market: The Sceretary General was sued in his
capacity as Sccretary General for the Common Market in a casc concerning the appointment of
Judges of the COMESA Court of Justice. The Court ruled in favour of COMESA, however,
COMESA is to bear the costs 2/3 of costs. An USS 46,573.60 [USS 39,977.34 on 01 March 2019
and USS 6,596.26 on 18 April 2019] was paid in respect of this judgment. This amount is fully

included in the 2017 Financial Statements.

(i)  Casc 3: The Secretary General, in his capacity as Chief Exccutive Officer of the Common Market
issued a letter on [27 November 2017], guarantecing an amount of USS3 million, in respect of a
letter of credit, which CVTFS Limited obtained from Stanbic Bank Zambia Limited. CVTIS
Limited were to liquidate this letter of credit from proceeds of the tracking devices, delivered and
sold to participating COMESA Member States. Insurance on the letter of credit was provided by

ATL
The maturity date of the letter of credit was 30 March 2019,
At date of maturity of the letter, the participating COMESA Member States:-
() Had taken delivery of the wacking devices
(1) Had acknowledged and made 2 commitment to settle the liability; and

(1i1) were yet to pay for the tracking devices.

Post 31 December 2017, DRC has remitted the following amounts: -

Date usb
18 December 2018 1,001,000
16 September 2019 2,000,000

Total 3,001,000

From the above receipts, CVTTS Limued has transferred US$2,814,000 towards the letter of credit.

In accordance with [AS 37.86, management has concluded that no provision should be made 1n
the 2017 COMESA Sccretariat financial statements, as the guarantce made by COMESA
Secretarmat is a possible obligation, but its payment by COMESA Secretariat is assessed as remole,
based on the insurance of the nisk by ATT, as well as positive progress made by CVTES in reducing

the amount owed to Stanbic Zambia Limated.
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29. Contingent asscts
The Secretariat had no known matenal conungent assets as at 31 December 2017: COMS (2016: Nilj.

30. Reclassification and Restatement
Certain reclassifications of prior year’s amounts have been made to conform to the presentation in the
current year. These reclassifications did not affect prior year’s reported result.,
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3 Budget Performance Report by Function - Member States funding
2017 2017 2017 2017 Actual 2017 2016 Actual
Budget approved Revised Budget
Budget Budget Utilisation
. Reallocation
Expenditure
Member States
Excentve managemoent 2.288,521 {140,200} 2,148,321 (1.504,553) 73% (2,285,502)
Budpet and fnance 1,132,541 {114,000} 988,341 (23479 93% (663,273)
Fheman resources and 4,457,219 301,950 4,086,871 (4,010,432) 98% 4,263,261)
admmistranon
Trade and customs 861,753 22,000 883,753 (938,493) 106% (806,956)
Infrastructure and lognsoes 749,127 (50,750) 698,377 (656,045) 24% (658,42:)
Aprculture, environment and 7359106 51,000 786,916 (713,020) 9% (616,052)
marural resources
Legal and msorunonat affares 471,405 28,000 499,405 610,414 122% (+19,167)
Gender and socalb affars 387,339 (6:3,000) 524,339 {436,881) 83% (512,289)
luformation technology 916,302 46,000 962,302 (167,066) 78% (715,830}
Internal audir 376,261 5,000 381,261 (372,891) 98%% (311,928}
Stratege planning 207,332 207,532 {209,936} 101% (192,335)
Resvurce mobihsanon and 243,347 243347 (233,409 96% (238,753)
mrernational Cooperation
Corporate Commumeabions 383,386 (12,000 371,586 {344,962) 91%% (273,466)
Resource Centre £56,116 156,116 (119,075) 76%
listares Unut 516,182 (100,000} 416,182 {201,845) 48%
Brusscls hason office 431,147 (14,0000 HT7,147 {345,489) 83% (362,753)
Add: Deprecanion on property (1,054,971} (832,205)
and equipment
Total Expenditure 13,811,996 {40,000) 13,771,996 (13,502,963) 98% (13,152,194)
v Fmance Costs 30,000 40,000 70,000 {(496,805) (1,236,645)
13,841,996 - 13,841,996 (13,999,768) 103% (14,388,839)
52
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w 12 Budgct Performance by Cost Type - Member States funding
Il
: 2017 2017 2017 2017 Actual 2017 2016
Budget approved Revised Budges Actual
Budget Budget Utilisation
, Reallocations
Expendiwre
Sraff Emoluments B521,813 (673,750} 7,948,063 (7,577,246) 95% 7,882,820
Sraff Welfare and Insunince 112,500 15,000 127,500 (86,357) 68% 114,991
ﬁ Staff Tramming and Development 91,000 52,000 143,000 {103,057) 2% 66,797
Seaff Reeruimenr and 181,000 - 181,000 (68,976) 38% 175,331
Repatriation
Fravel, Meetmgs and Workshops 2,271,800 113,000 2,384,800 (2,000,751) 88% 2,376,525
Consultancies 496,500 480,750 977,250 {971,946) 9% -
Support to Member States 40,000 . 40,000 - 0% .
Publication and Vizbiliy 165,000 - 165,000 {119,298) 72% 158,557
i Grant Counrerpart FFunding 90,000 (26,000} 64,000 (60,133) 94% 63,692
leenon Monitoring 75,000 10,000 83,000 (83,480) 98% 71,794
= 1T Recurrent Costs 2?6,000 “2,000_: 264,000 (226,96') TO% 276.62(’
Admmstration and General Coses 1,220,300 1,000 1,221,500 {815,399 67% 1,081,584
Audit Costs 170,883 - 170,883 {134,381) -
Legal Costa < : {100,000) 100% .
Deprecianon (1,054,971) 832,205
13,811,996 (40,000) 13,771,996 (13,502,963) 98% 13,100,922
ﬁ Trmance (Cosi: 30,000.00 40,000 70,000.00 {-196,803) 1,287,917
13,841,996 T TT8a19%  (13,999,768) 105% 14,388,839
53
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33

34.

Evenis subsequent to the reporting date
There were no subsequent events requiring disclosure or adjustment of these financial statements,

Significant accounting policics
The Secretariat has consistently applied the following accounung policies to all periods
presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise stated,

Set out below 1s an index of the significant accounting pohcies, the details of which are
available on the pages that follow:

Note

®
()
()
(w)
)
(1)
{vi1)
{vr)
(1x)
(=)

(s1)

()

Revenue recognition

Expenditure
Income rax

Property and equipment
Provision
Finanecial instruments
Capital grants

Employec benefits
Foreign currency

Related party transactions
Segment reporting

Revenue recognition

(a)

Contributions

1.

o

AMember States contribution income represents contribution recetvable
from Member States. Contributions recetvable are recogntsed as mcome
i the year that asscssments are raised and are based on the assessments
approved by the Council of Ministers.

Grants contribution income is recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all auached conditions wall
be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, 1t s
recognised as income on a systematic basts over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended 10 compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates 1o an asser, it recognised as income systematically
over the expected uscful life of the relared asset.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

T COMESA Dalflar

(ii)

(iii)

(b) Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recogmised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(c) Interest income
Interest income from a finaneml asset is recoprused when 1t 1s probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the enuty and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income 15 accrued on a time basts, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effecuve nterest rate applicable, which is the rate that exacdy
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial
asset to that assct’s net carrying amount on mitial recogniton.

(d) Dividend
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established (provided that it 1s probable that the cconomic
benefits will flow 1o the entity and the amount of income can be measured rehably).

(e) Deferred income
Deferred income are grants recetved from Cooperaung Partners, which have not
been unlised in the period. Income 1s only recognised when there 15 reasonable
assurance that it will be recerved and all attached conditions have been complied with.

(f) Income from invesiments
Income from investments includes realised and unrealized gains and losses on
financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(g) Donations
Resources whether cash and or in kind donated without any restrictions are
recognized as income in the year of donanon.

Expenditure

For Member States funding, expenditures are recognised in the year in which they are
incurred. For grants, recognised when all attached conditions have been complied widh.

Income tax
The Organisaton is exempt from income tax under paragraph 4b of Part Il of Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Act 1966 {as amended}), Cap 323 of Laws of Zambua.

(o7
(¥
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(iv} Property and equipment

{a) Recopnition and nreasirement

Leaschold land and buildings are stated 1n the statement of financial positon at cost,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciaton and subsequent impatrment losses.
Fixed and movable plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings and motor vehicles are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less depreciation.

Asscts under construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment loss.
Such assets arc initially shown as capital work in progress and transferred to the
relevant class of assets when commissioned, Cost includes professional fees and
where necessary, borrowing costs.

it} Deprectation

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged direetly to statement of income and
expenditure. Depreciation 1s charged to wite off the cost of property and equipment
over their csumated useful economic bives on a straghr-line basis. Residue value 15
reviewed at least annually and is the amount the entity would recerve currently if the
assct were already of the age and condition expected or ar the end of 1ts useful hife.
Useful life 1s also reviewed annually through the Board of Survey. The following rates
have consistently been vsed in prior years: -

Leaschold properties 2%

Motor vehicles 20% or 3345%
Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fittings 10%

Computers and software 33 Y3%

Capital work in progress is not depreciated
Land is not amorused

The gain or loss arsing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and
cquipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised 1n profit or loss.

At each reporting date, the Secretariat reviews the earrying amounts of its tangible
and other assets to determmne whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicaton exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and or value in use. In
assessing value in use, the esumated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value
of money and the risks spectfic to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s esumated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the assct is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impatrment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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34.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property and equipment {tontinued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the earrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the in¢reased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant assct 1s carried at a revalued amount, in which easc the reversal of the impairment loss s treated
as a revaluation increase.

f) Revalnation of property and equipment

An external, mdependent valuation expert, having appropriate recognised professional quakficauons and
cxpertise 1s engaged to conduct valuation every 5 years, The fair values are based on market values, being the
csumated amount for which a property and equipment could be exchanged on the date of the valuauon
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length ransacuon after proper marketing wheremn the
partics had cach acted knowledgeably

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuatons are prepared by considening the
aggregate of the estimated cash flows expected to be receved from renting out the property and
cquipment. A market yield s applied to the estimated rental value, adjustments are made to reflect actual
rentals as follows;

current prices in an active market for propertics of different nature, condition or location {or subject to
different lease or other contracets), adjusted to reflect those differences;

reeent prices of similar propertics in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
ccanomic canditions smee the date of the transactions that cecurred at those prices; and discounted cash
flow projecuons based on reliable estimates of furure cash flows, derved from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (where possible) from external ewvidence such s current marker rents for similar
propertics i the same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the uncertainiy in the amount and nrmung of the cash flows.

The surplus arising on the revaluation of property and equipment is initially credited to a revaluation
surplus, which is a non-distributable reserve. A transfer is made from this reserve to retained earnings
cach year, for a 5-year period and or over a shorter period, if the appropriate assct is disposed-off.

If the asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in other
comprehensive incotne to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of
that asset, thereafter the remaining decrease is recognised in profit or loss.
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Fnancial Staterments

Jor the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements frontinned)

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(vi)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Secretaniat has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and 1t is probable that the Secretariat will be required to sertle that obhigation and a rchable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a proviston s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligaton at the reporung date taking into account the sk and uncertanues
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using cash flows esumated to sertle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of the cash flows (when the effect of
the ume value of money 1s material}.

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable 1s recognised as an asset if 1t 1s virtually certan that
retmbursement will be received and the amount of the receivables can be measured rehably.

A contingent hability arses when:

{a} there 1s a possible obligation to be confirmed by a future event that 1s outside the control of
the enriry;

(b} present obligavon may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources; and

(e} sufficiently reliable esumate of the amount of a present obligation cannot be made (this 1s
rare).

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized but require disclosure unless the possibility of outflow is
remote, then no disclosure 1s required.

A conungent assct arises when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, but not virtually
certain, and occurrence depends on an event outside the control of the entity. Contingent assets
require disclosure only. If the realisation of income 1s virtually certain, the related asset 1s not a
contingent asset and recognition is appropriate,

Financial instruments

Financil asscts and financial habilines are recognised in the Secretariat’s starement of financial
posivon when the Seeretariat becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial asscts and financial liabilities are mitially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of financial assets and financial Lhabilives (other
than financial assets and financial liabilimes ar fair value through profit or loss) are added 10 or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as approprate, on inital
recognition. Transaction costs dircctly auributable to the acquisiion of financial asscts or
financial habihoes at fair value through profit or loss arc recognised immediately in profit or loss
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Sfor the year ended 31 Decemaber 2017

Notes to the financial statements jontrnned)

34.

Significant accounting policics (comtinucd)

Financial instruments (confinied)

(a) Financial asscts

Financial assets arc classified into the following specified categories: ‘held-to-maturity’
investments, financial assets and ‘reccivables’. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of ininal recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial asscts are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

1. Lffecties interest method

“The effecuve interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocaung interest income over the relevant period. The effecuve interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estumated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premwums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt mstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initsal recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt mstrument

2. Receivabies

Receivables are non-denvanve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active marker. Receivables (including trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash) are mensured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment,

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: Contnibuttons receivable and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The classificauon depends on the nature and
purpose of the financtal assets and it determined at the time of the nitial recognition.

3. Tmpairment of finuncial assets

"Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of cach reporting penod.
Finaneial asscts are considered 1o be impaired when there is objecuve evidence that, as a result of
onc or morc cvents that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For cquity investments, a significant or prolonged dechine in the fair value of the secunty below
its cost is considered 1o be objective evidence of impairment.”
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34.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (confied)
Financial assets {tontinued)

A, Tmpairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial asscts, objecuve evidence of impairment could nclude significant financial difficulty
of the issucr or countcrparty; or breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-
organisation; or the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficuluies.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as other recewvables, asscts that arc assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Secretariat’s past experience of collectung
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
as well as obscrvable changes in nauonal or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
recervables.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even 1if they were assessed not to be impared individually. Objective cvidence of
imparment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Secretanat’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of 60 days, as well as observable changes in nadonal or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised 1s the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estumated future cash flows,
discounted at the finanetal asser’s onygnnal effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asser’s carrying amount and the present value of the esumated furture cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

il
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34.

Significant accounting policies {continucd)
Financial assets frontinued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
asscts with the exception of wrade receivables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollecnble, it 1s written off agamnst
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited agamst
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.”

When a financial assct is considered to be impaired, cumulatve gams or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

“For financial assets measured at amortsed cost, if, in a subscquent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment 1s reversed
does not exceed what the amorused cost would have been had the impatrment not been recognised.

In respect of equity securities, impairment losses previously recogmised mn profit ar loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss s
recogmised 1n other comprchensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of debt securities, impairment losses are subscquently reversed
through profit or loss 1f an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an cvent occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.”

3. Derecoprition of financial assets

“The Sccretariat derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows
from the assct expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantally all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Secretariat neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Secretariat recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Secretariat retains substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Secretatiat continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entrety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and recervable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recogmised in other comprehensive income and accumulated i equuty 1s recognised n
profit or loss.

i1
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34,

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (ontinued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Secretanat retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Sccretanat allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part i continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the ransfer. *

The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that 1s no longer recognised and
the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income 15 recognised in profit or
loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income 15 allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relatve fair values of those parts.

6. Cush and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at hand, term deposits and other short term highly
liquid instruments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.

(b) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilitics’. Other financial habilities

"Other financial habilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

The effective interest method is a method of caleulatng the amortised cost of a financial hability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 15 the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments ({including all fees and points paid or reccived that
form an integral part of the cffective interest rate, transaction costs and other premums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial hability, or (where appropnate] a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,”

! Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Secretariat derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Secretanat’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liabulity derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss
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34,

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Capital grants

Capital grants represents the value of assets vested in the Secretariat by the multilateral and
bilateral cooperation partners without charge to the Secretariat. Capital grants are deferred
and credited to the surplus and deficit in equal annual instalments over the expected uscful
life of the related asscts. Scparate financial statements are prepared for the specific projeets
funded by cooperauon partners.

Employee benefit

1. Post-employment bencefits

The Secretariat contributes to a defined contnbution plan for qualifying employees.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employces have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Sccretariat operates defined contnbution retirement benefit plan for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the plans are held n an investment fund managed by Zunch
Provident Fund. The funds are withdtawn when making payments to employees at the end
of their contract when the retirement benefits are due. Where employees leave the plan prior
to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the Secretariat are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contnbutions.

Contributions of 15% and 10% of the basic pay are made by the employer and employcee,
respectively.

As such the amounts acerued to this account, approsimate the fair value of the Scerctariat's
post-cmployment obligations.

2. Short-term employee benefits
The Sccretariat has recognized babilives for the following short-term benefits, the value of
which is based on the amount payable 1o each staff member at the reportng date.

Accumulated leave: staff members are cligible for 30 days’ annual leave. Annual leave is a
short-term employec benefit, as staff have the right to accumulate unused annual leave and
receive payment in licu thereof to the maximum of 60 days on separation from service and 1s
treated as a current liabilicy.

Home Leave: internationally recruited staff members are eligible for home leave for
themselves and their dependents being spouse an up to four dependent chsldren to the
country of their origin every second year,

Education cost for dependent children: staff members are reimbursed up to 75% of cost
of education of dependent children. Limits apply based on age of dependent cluldren, as well
as based on category of siaff.

Medical cost: staff members are reimbursed up to 80% of medical cost for the staff, spousc

and dependent children. Limits apply based on age of dependent children, as well as based
on category of staff

03
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34.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(ix)

=)

(xi)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Sceretariat’s
functional currency (foreign currency) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
date of the transacuons.

At each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that arc
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevatling at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured i terms of historical
cost 1n a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Foreign exchange differences are recognised 1n profit or Joss in the period in which they
arisc except for:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relaung to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are tncluded 1n the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to mterest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

exchange differences on monetary items recetvable from or payable to a foreign operaton
for which sertlement is neither planned nor likely 1o oceur (thercefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operauon), which are recognised mually in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from cquity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Related party transactions
Related parties are defined as those parties that directly or indirectly through one or more
intermedianies, the party that

@ controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity; and
(b) has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity.

Al dealings with related parties are transacted on an arm’s length basis and accordingly
included in income statement

Segment reporting
Segment reporung is based upon the financing agreements between the Secretarac and
Cooperatng Partners.

Accordingly, separate general ledgers are maintained for cach agreement. Revenue and

expense incurred by the Secretariat is accounted for within each general ledger in accordance
with the conditions of the unexpired financial agreements.

G4
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Notes to the financial statements (ontnued)

34.

35.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

The methodology allocates revenue and expense to each program and then to each Cooperaung
Partners based on a combination of dircet revenue and expense and re-imbursements based on
financing agreement. The Secretariat’s assets and habilites are not allocated to individual segments,
since ownership rests with the Secretanat as a whole; however, each business unit’s share of the
Secretariat’s net assets including accumulated fund balances, revaluation surplus and working capual
funds is recognized by segment.

Reclassification and Restatement
Certain reclassifications of prior year’s amounts have been made to conform to the presentation in
the current year. These reclassifications did not affect prior year’s reported result,
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Notes to the financial statements (ronsznued)

36 New standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are cffective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those

which may be relevant to the COMESA Secretanat are set out below.

The COMESA Sccretariat has elected not to “early adopt” any of the IFRS / interpretations not yet effective as
at 31 December 2017,

These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless otherwise indicated:

resulong from [FRS
9

Effective date | Standard, Summary of requirements
Amendment or
Interpretation

Standard

1 January 2018 | IFRS 7 Addinonal In December 2011, the TASB isued Mandatory Effectnve Date
disclosures (and and Transition Disclosures (Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS
consequental 7), which
amendments)

amends the effective date of IFRS 9 Financal Instruments to
annual perinds beginning on or after 1 January 2015, and
modifies the relicf from restanng comparauve periods and the
assoctated  disclosures in IFRS 7 Financial  Instruments:
Disclosutes.

The impact of the adopton of the standard on the financial
statements for the Secretariat has not yet been guantified

I January 2018

IFRS 9 Tinancial

Instruments

In July 2017, the IASB wsued the fiwal IFRS 9 Financal
Instruments Standard, which replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9
and completes the TASB’s project to replace LAS 39 Financal
Lustriments:

The impact of the adopoon of the standard on the financial
statements for the Secretariat has not vet been gquanofied

1 January 2018

IFRS 153 Revenue
from contracts with
CUstomuoers

Amendments were ssued in Aprl 2016, adding gudance on (1)
determining whether promsed poods or services are distnc,
{n) principal versus agent consideragons and (W) licensing. The
amendments also add rwo optional pracieal expedients and are
effective 1 January 2018 with caelier applicason permicted.

The requirements of this IFRS supersede 1AS 11 Constructon
Contracts, and 1AS 18 Revenue and related Interpretatons,
including IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15
Agreements for the Construcuon of Real Estate, IFRIC 18
Transfers of Assets from Customers, and SIC 31 Revenue
Barrer Transacuons Involving Advernsing Services,

The impact of the adopnon of the standard on the financial
statements for the Secretarat has not yet been guanofied

iTe]




Effective date

Standard,
Amendment or
Interpretation

Summary of requircments

1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases

Issued in January 2016 and effecuve for annual penods
beginnung on or after 1 January 2019.

Earlier apphication is permitted f IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers has also been applied.

It was developed with the FASB, bur the 1ASB and FASB
diverged on some aspects of their new standards.

The impact of the adopuon of the standard on the financil
statements for the Secretanat has not yet been quanufied.

Interpretabion

Hl I I I E D B OB o

1 January MR

IFRIC 22 Foreiygn
Currency
Transactions and
Advance
Consideratton

Tssucd in December 2016 and effectve for annual penods
beginning on ot after 1 January 2018

The Interpretaton covers foreign currency transachions when
A eNHEy TECOgnIsEs A NOTFMONCTATY Asset O nof-monciry
Labihty arsing from the payment or receipt of advance,

Clanifies the accountng for ransactons that include the recept
and or payment of advance of advance consideration

The impact of the adoprion of the standard on the financial
staternents for the Secretariar has not yet been quanufied

Disclosure Initiative

EEE 3

|

-

1 January 2018

Disclosure Imuative
{(Amendments fo
IAS D)

The amendments provide for disclosures thar cnable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in babilimes ansing
from financing acovides, including both changes antsing from
cash flow and non-cash changes. This includes providing a
reconcilation between the opening and closing balances for
labilines ansing from financing activibies.

The amendments apply for annual peniods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 and early applicagon 15 permitted.
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